MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
REGULAR MEETING
FEBRUARY 11, 2020
MINUTES

Chairman Tate called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. and welcomed those in
attendance. All Board Members, County Manager Derek Roland, Deputy Clerk
Mike Decker, Finance Director Lori Carpenter, County Attorney Chester Jones,
members of the news media and interested citizens were present. Due to the
size of the audience, Chairman Tate announced that the board would recess
the meeting and reconvene in Courtroom A on the fourth floor of the Macon
County Courthouse. Upon a motion by Commissioner Beale, seconded by
Commission Shields, the board voted unanimously to recess the meeting at
6:01 p.m. and reconvene in Courtroom A.

Chairman Tate reconvened the meeting in Courtroom A at 6:10 p.m., where it
was standing room only with a number of citizens standing outside the
courtroom doors in the hallway. Chairman Tate welcomed those in attendance
and remarked this was the largest crowd he had ever seen at a board meeting,
and noted that an effort was being made to bring as many people inside the
courtroom as possible.

ANNOUNCEMENTS: Chairman Tate recognized State Representative Kevin
Corbin, Cherokee County Commissioner C.B. McKinnon and Town of Franklin
Mayor Bob Scott. Chairman Tate noted that he had received a copy of the
annual report from the North Carolina Education Lottery, as well as a “thank
you” letter to the board from a Highlands school teacher. He also explained
that down in the boardroom, the county had placed a “reserved” sign on the
back row of benches in honor of Rich Robb, who died recently at the age of 96.
Mr. Robb, a World War II veteran, and his wife were longtime regular attendees
of the commission’s regular meetings, and Chairman Tate described him as “a
genuine soul.” Board members expressed their condolences to Mrs. Robb.

MOMENT OF SILENCE: Chairman Tate asked those in attendance to observe
a moment of silence.

PLEDGE TO THE FLAG: Led by Commissioner Gillespie, the pledge to the flag

was recited.
Minutes
02.11.20
Page 1 of 10






MaryAnn Ingram told the board that she likes guns and was a sharpshooter
during her time in the U.S. Navy Seabees, but then raised questions about
what defines a sanctuary. She then spoke of efforts to live in peace and the
importance of individual lives. She asked the board members to “think about
the sanctuary you want to be.”

Susan Ervin, who told the board she was representing a large group of women
present in the room, said this group “has come together before you to express
our opposition to making Macon County a Second Amendment Sanctuary. She
said the group does not oppose gun ownership but does support reasonable
gun control. “The proposed ‘sanctuary” does not make us feel safer,” she said,
later concluding, “The definition of a sanctuary is a place of refuge or rest, a
place where you can feel at peace. We do not need a Second Amendment
Sanctuary in Macon County, we need people working together to make our
community a safe and peaceful place.”

Ronnie Dills commented that the Second Amendment “shall not be infringed,”
and told the board that if the sanctuary resolution is not taken seriously,
“things may go too far,” pointing to recent events in Virginia as an example.

Jane Morgan, the president of the Gem & Mineral Society, asked the board
about an extension of the lease agreement between the county and the
organization, a document she believed was going to be signed tonight. Mr.
Roland pointed out that the agreement entered into last month is for one year,
and Commissioner Beale said the board would be considering an extended time
frame.

Laurel Holland addressed a school shooting that happened two years ago, and
urged the board not to support the sanctuary amendment resolution and to “let
our children come home safe.”

Bill McLarney said he was not in support of the concept of the county as a
second amendment sanctuary. He went on to state that he is not “a nut,” nor
he is anti-gun, but later added that, “It doesn’t strike me as logical not to
regulate firearms.” He urged the board not to have a “knee jerk reaction” on the
resolution and to think it through.

Chris Browning said, “I think we have a good idea where individual board
members stand” on approving the Second Amendment Sanctuary resolution.
He spoke about symbolism, particularly of the American flag. He told the
board members that “you promised us you would do this in January,” adding
that the board asked Donnie Holden “to put this [resolution] together.” In
closing, he requested, “Let us know where you stand,” urging the board to let

Minutes
02.11.20
Page 3 of 10






The public comment period ended at 8:04 p.m.

ADDITIONS, ADJUSTMENTS TO AND APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA: Upon
a motion by Commissioner Gillespie, seconded by Commissioner Shields, the
board voted unanimously to approve the agenda as adjusted, as follows:

e To add under Reports and Presentations Itermn 9A — an update from Dr.
Don Tomas on the burn building at Southwestern Community College,
per Mr. Roland.

¢« To add under New Business Item 11E - discussion of the U.S. Forest
Service plan, per Mr. Roland.

¢ To add under New Business Item 11F - consideration of a resolution
exempting surveying services for the Henson property gift, per Mr.
Roland.

¢ To add under New Business Item 11G - consideration of a resolution
exempting engineering services for convenience center improvements, per
Mr. Roland.

* To add under Appointments Item 13B - consideration of appointing Jerry
Moore to the Economic Development Commission, per Mr. Roland.

NOTE: During this time on the agenda, Chairman Tate paused to allow
members of the audience to leave the courtroom.

¢ To add under Old Business Item 10C -- discussion and/or consideration
of a Second Amendment Sanctuary resolution, per Commissioner
Higdon.

e To add under Reports and Presentations as an addition to Item 9A -
consideration of a resolution exempting surveying services for the
National Guard Armory, per Mr. Roland.

Reports/Presentations

UPDATE ON BURN BUILDING: Dr. Don Tomas, president of Southwestern
Community College (SCC), provided the board with an updated status report on
the proposed new burn building. One of the first items addressed was that
there was no new cost estimate. The discussion then turned to a survey and
appraisal of the National Guard Armory property and the costs associated with
those matters. Following extended discussion, and upon a motion by
Commissioner Gillespie, seconded by Commissioner Shields, the board voted
unanimously to (1) approve a “Resolution Exempting Surveying Services for
National Guard Armory Site in Macon County, North Carolina, From the
Provisions of Article 3D of Chapter 143 of the North Carolina General Statutes,”
and (2) to take an amount not to exceed $7,500 from contingency to pay for a
survey of the armory site. Mrs. Carpenter told the board she would prepare a
budget amendment in the amount of $7,500 regarding this action. An

Minutes
02.11.20
Page 5 of 10






other board members haven’t seen that most recent version, he could not make
a motion. Commissioner Shields spoke next, and said he cannot support the
word “sanctuary,” and asked for a legal interpretation of a specific paragraph in
the resolution Mr., Holden presented. He also questioned whether a vote of
support for the resolution would violate the oath of office he took as a
commissioner. Commissioner Beale said he was interested to see the updated
version of the resolution Commissioner Higdon referenced, and to review the
one Sheriff Holland had presented. Commissioner Beale said he looked
forward to the conversation, noting that the board has received “a book full” of
proposed resolutions, adding “I don't want to do something illegal.”
Commissioner Gillespie spoke next, saying that there is confusion tonight
because there are multiple variations of the resolution out there. He said that
every commissioner has already sworn to uphold the Second Amendment, and
that the board would be reaffirming “what we’ve taken an oath to do.” He went
on to state that his job as a commissioner was to look at all of the available
information. Chairman Tate went next, and said “All we want to do is make the
best decision for Macon County,” but also noted that he doesn’t like dealing
with issues like this. He described himself as a “minimalist,” adding that he
believes in our rights and that he grew up in a “hunting, gun-loving family.” As
a comnmissioner, he said he wasn’t “put here to make emotional decisions,” and
he would study this issue “until I'm ready” to make a decision. He noted he
had jotted down a number of questions,” and had heard from the mayors of
Franklin and Highlands about the potential impact from such a resolution on
the tourism economy. “Personally, [ am still weighing all of this,” he concluded.
The discussion then turned back to the most recent version of the proposed
resolution from Mr. Holden, and Mr. Jones said the board “has to have
something they can see to vote on.” Commissioner Higdon asked if the
resolution can be on the agenda for March. Chairman Tate said the revised
resolution would be distributed to all board members, adding he would like to
have the county attorney’s opinion on the entire matter. He said the board
should be “ready to move forward on it” at the next regular meeting.
Discussion on this matter ended at 9:23 p.m., and Chairman Tate thanked all
of those who remained to hear the board members’ thoughts. No action was
taken.

NEW BUSINESS

LEASE EXTENSION FOR USDA SERVICE CENTER: Mr. Roland explained
that the board was being asked to consider the seventh in a series of lease
extensions for the USDA Service Center, located at 189 Thomas Heights Road
in Franklin. The lease extension would again be for three years, and would run
from April 1, 2020 to March 31, 2023, with the county to receive annual rent in
the amount of $9,920. Mr. Roland noted that the terms of lease are the same
as they were in 2017. Upon a motion by Commissioner Beale, seconded by

Minutes
02.11.20
Page 7 of 10












